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NUCLEAR FUEL SERVICES, INC*
a subsidiary of The Babcock & Wilcox Company

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

21 G-09-0135
GOV-01-55-04

ACF-09-0268

September 11, 2009

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Attention: Document Control Desk
Washington, DC 20555

References: 1)
2)

Docket No. 70-143; SNM License 124
NRC Inspection Report No. 70-143/2009-002 and Notice of Violation,
dated August 12, 2009

Subject: Reply to Notice of Violation (No. 70-143/2009-002-01)

Dear Sir:

Pursuant to the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201, Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (NFS) hereby
submits the attached response to the subject violation identified in the referenced NRC
inspection report.

If you or your staff have any questions, require additional information, or wish to discuss
this matter further, please contact me, or Mr. Rik Droke, Licensing and Compliance
Director, at (423) 743-1741. Please reference our unique document identification number
(21G-09-0135) in any correspondence concerning this letter.

Sincerely,

NUCLEAR FUEL SERVICES, INC.

B. Marie Moore
Director of Safety and Regulatory
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References: 1) 
2) NRC Inspection Report No. 70-143/2009-002 and Notice of Violation, 

dated August 12, 2009 

Subject: Reply to Notice of Violation (No. 70-143/2009-002-01) 

Dear Sir: 

Pursuant to the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201, Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc. (NFS) hereby 
submits the attached response to the subject violation identified in the referenced NRC 

. inspection report. 

If you or your staff have any questions, require additional information, or wish to discuss 
this matter further, please contact me, or Mr. Rik Droke, Licensing and Compliance 
Director, at (423) 743-1741. Please reference our unique document identification number 
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copy:

Regional Administrator
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Region II
Atlanta Federal Center
61 Forsyth Street, SW
Suite 23T85
Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. Manuel Crespo
Project Inspector
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Region II
Atlanta Federal Center
61 Forsyth Street, SW
Suite 23T85
Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. Stephen Burris
Senior Resident Inspector
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
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Project Inspector 
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Region II 
Atlanta Federal Center 
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NFS Reply to Notice of Violation
VIO 70-143/2009-002-01

Restatement of Violation 2009-002-01

During NRC inspections conducted from April 5, 2009 through June 30, 2009, a violation
of NRC requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the
violation is listed below:

Safety Condition S-1 of Special Nuclear Materials (SNM) License No. SNM-124 authorizes
the use of licensed materials in accordance with the statements, representations, and
conditions in the License Application and Supplements.

Section 2.7 of the License Application, "Procedures", states in part that SNM operations
and safety function activities shall be conducted in accordance with approved written
procedures. Compliance with these procedures is mandatory.

Contrary to the above, the following two examples of failing to conduct activities in
accordance with approved written procedures were identified:

1. Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)"401, Section 8, "Area 800", Revision 6,
governs the operation of exhaust blowers B801 and B802. On April 27, 2009,
while performing preventative maintenance, plant personnel secured blowers
B801 and B802 while the combustible gas was still in use utilizing a preventative
maintenance document rather than the approved SOP.

2. NFS-GH-36, "Lockout/Tagout", Revision 7, Step 5.5 requires the installation of
locks/tags on all identified energy isolation points when working on equipment.
On April 27, 2009, plant personnel failed to affix locks or tags on the disconnect
breakers (the energy isolation points) of blowers B801 and B802 while
performing preventative maintenance.

This is a Severity Level IV Problem (Supplement VI).

The Reason for the Violation, or, if Contested, the Basis for Disputing the Violation
or Severity Level

The incident occured on April 27, 2009, when two maintenance mechanics assigned to
perform preventive maintenance (PMs) began work on exhaust blowers B801 and B802.
The mechanics were under the impression that the power could be interrupted to the
blowers as long as the PMs were not performed simultaneously and one blower remained
in operation at all times. No notification was made to Operations prior to performing the
work. The PM Template, the written instructions for performing the PM, did not specifically
call for Lock-Out/Tag-Out or notification of Operations unless additional work on the
system was required.

The mechanics also inadvertently used an incorrect energy isolation technique. The
technique used was from NFS-GH-36, Revision 6 (effective date August 31, 2007), which
allowed energy isolation within arms reach without a permit or Lock-Out/Tag-Out.
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During NRC inspections conducted from April 5, 2009 through June 30, 2009, a violation 
of NRC requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the 
violation is listed below: 

Safety Condition S-1 of Special Nuclear Materials (SNM) License No. SNM-124 authorizes 
the use of licensed materials in accordance with the statements, representations, and 
conditions in the License Application and Supplements. 

Section 2.7 of the License Application, "Procedures", states in part that SNM operations 
and safety function activities shall be conducted in accordance with approved written 
procedures. Compliance with these procedures is mandatory. 

Contrary to the above, the following two examples offailing to conduct activities in 
accordance with approved written procedures were identified: 

1. Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)'401, Section 8, "Area 800", Revision 6, 
governs the operation of exhaust blowers 8801 and 8802. On April 27,2009, 
while performing preventative maintenance, plant personnel secured blowers 
8801 and 8802 while the combustible gas was still in use utilizing a preventative 
maintenance document rather than the approved SOP. 

2. NFS-GH-36, "Lockoutrragout", Revision 7, Step 5.5 requires the installation of 
locks/tags on all identified energy isolation points when working on equipment. 
On April 27, 2009, plant personnel failed to affix locks or tags on the disconnect 
breakers (the energy isolation points) of blowers 8801 and 8802 while 
performing preventative maintenance. 

This is a Severity Level IV Problem (Supplement VI). 

The Reason for the Violation, or, if Contested, the Basis for Disputing the Violation 
or Severity Level 

The incident occured on April 27,2009, when two maintenance mechanics assigned to 
perform preventive maintenance (PMs) began work on exhaust blowers 8801 and 8802. 
The mechanics were under the impression that the power could be interrupted to the 
blowers as long as the PMs were not performed simultaneously and one blower remained 
in operation at all times. No notification was made to Operations prior to performing the 
work. The PM Template, the written instructions for performing the PM, did not specifically 
call for Lock-Outrrag-Out or notification of Operations unless additional work on the 
system was required. 

The mechanics also inadvertently used an incorrect energy isolation technique. The 
technique used was from NFS-GH-36, Revision 6 (effective date August 31, 2007), which 
allowed energy isolation within arms reach without a permit or Lock-Outrrag-Out. ' 
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However, the revision of NFS-GH-36 in effect at the time the PM was performed (Revision
7, effective date March 31, 2009) required energy isolation with a permit and Lock-
Out/Tag-Out.

The Corrective Steps That Have Been Taken and the Results Achieved

The PM Template was reviewed, and interviews with various Maintenance personnel were
conducted. The interviews revealed that much of the knowledge related to special
circumstances or conditions under which PMs are performed is gained through experience
or handed down as skill of the trade. However, it was determined that notifications to
Operations should be more formal. Therefore, the PM Template was revised to require
notification of energy source users when an energy source will be interrupted due to a PM
activity. In the specific case of exhaust blowers B801 and B802, the notification will allow
Operations to turn off the combustible gas supply (per SOP 401, Section 8, "Area 800")
before PM is performed.

NFS-GH-36, Revision 7, was reviewed to ensure that the instructions regarding energy
isolation were clear. Although no changes to the procedure were necessary, the
maintenance mechanics were reinstructed on Revision 7 to ensure they understood the
energy isolation techniques currently approved for use.

The Corrective Steps That Will Be Taken to Avoid Further Violations

The corrective actions identified above are sufficient to prevent further violations of this
nature.

The Date When Full Compliance Will Be Achieved

Full compliance was achieved on August 5, 2009, when the reinstruction of the
maintenance mechanics was completed.
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